
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
The Chair and Members of Joint 
Board 

Please ask for  Rachel Lenthall 

 Direct Line 01246 345277 
 Fax  

 
01246 345252 

 4 March 2016 
 
Dear Councillor, 
 

Please attend a meeting of the JOINT BOARD to be held on MONDAY, 14 
MARCH 2016 at 10.00 am in the Executive Meeting Room at North East 
Derbyshire District Council, District Council Offices, Wingerworth, S42 
6NG, the agenda for which is set out below. 
 

AGENDA 
 

Part 1(Public Information) 
1.  

  
Declarations of Members' and Officers' Interests relating to items on the 
Agenda  
 

2.  
  
Apologies for Absence  
 

3.  
  
Minutes (Pages 3 - 10) 
 

 Record of decisions of the Joint Board held on 9 November, 2015. 

 Notes of the meeting of the Joint Board held on 9 November, 2015. 
 

4.  
  
Chesterfield and North East Derbyshire Credit Union - Business Plan 
2015 - 2018 (Pages 11 - 24) 
 

5.  
  
Internal Audit Consortium Progress Report 2015/16 and Draft Business 
Plan 2016/17 (Pages 25 - 34) 
 

6.  
  
Local Government Act 1972 - Exclusion of the Public  
 
To move “That under Regulation 21(1)(b) of the Local Authorities 

Public Document Pack



 
 

(Executive Arrangements) (Access to Information) (England) Regulations 
2000, the public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of 
business on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt 
information relating to the labour relations within the authorities as defined 
in Paragraph 4 of Part I of Schedule 12A to the Local Government Act 
1972.” 
 

Part 2 (Non Public Information) 
 

7.  
  
Building Control Transformation Project - Progress Update (Pages 35 - 
40) 
 
 

Yours sincerely, 
 

 
 
Local Government and Regulatory Law Manager and Monitoring Officer 

(Chesterfield Borough Council) 
 
  



 

RECORD OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS – JOINT WORKING 
 
 

CBC:LEADER 
 
BDC: LEADER 
 
NEDDC:LEADER 

Date of Decision 
09.11.2015 

Title Reference: Minutes 
 

Key Decision References  (if applicable): 
   CBC: N/A 
   BDC: N/A 
   NEDDC: N/A 

Delegation 
Reference: 

CBC: R080L 
BDC: 
NEDDC: 

Report and background papers  Yes/
No 

Public   Exempt  Confidential  

Decision 
Status 
(CBC) 

Notice of Key or Private Decision   
Authorised By: N/A General Urgency N/A 

Special Urgency N/A 

Exempt Urgency N/A 

Record of Decision: 
 
That the notes and the Record of Decisions of the Joint Board meeting held on 5 
October, 2015 be noted.  
 

Reasons for Decision: 
 
To note the progress of Joint Working 

Alternative options considered and rejected (if any):  
 

Declarations of interests:  None 
 

Decision subject to call-in: No 
Date of implementation if not called in: N/A 
 

Date Record Issued  
Contact Officer: Martin Elliott, Chesterfield Borough Council 
martin.elliott@chesterfield.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



 

RECORD OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS – JOINT WORKING 
 
 

CBC:LEADER 
 
BDC: LEADER 
 
NEDDC:LEADER 

Date of Decision 
09.11.2015 

Title Reference: Review of the Internal Audit Structure 
 

Key Decision References  (if applicable): 
   CBC:  
   BDC: 
   NEDDC: 

Delegation 
Reference: 

CBC: R080L 
BDC: 
NEDDC: 

Report and background papers  Yes/
No 

Public   Exempt  Confidential  

Decision 
Status 
(CBC) 

Notice of Key or Private Decision   
Authorised By: N/A General Urgency N/A 

Special Urgency N/A 

Exempt Urgency N/A 

Record of Decision: 
 
1. That the revised management and staffing structure and the associated salary 
grade changes, of the Internal Audit Consortium be approved and implemented.   
 
2. That £5,000 of the annual salary saving be transferred into the training budget and 
a further £5,000 into a provision for external support. 
 

Reasons for Decision: 
 
To have a ‘fit for purpose’ staffing structure for the Internal Audit Consortium. 

Alternative options considered and rejected (if any):  
 

Declarations of interests: None 
 

Decision subject to call-in Yes 
Date of implementation if not called in: 17.11.2015 
 

Date Record Issued  
Contact Officer: Martin Elliott, Chesterfield Borough Council 
martin.elliott@chesterfield.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 

Page 4



 

RECORD OF EXECUTIVE DECISIONS – JOINT WORKING 
 
 

CBC:LEADER 
 
BDC: LEADER 
 
NEDDC:LEADER 

Date of Decision 
09.11.2015 

Title Reference: BCN Building Control – Future Business Case 
 

Key Decision References  (if applicable): 
   CBC:  
   BDC: 
   NEDDC: 

Delegation 
Reference: 

CBC: R080L 
BDC: 
NEDDC: 

Report and background papers  Yes/
No 

Public   Exempt  Confidential  

Decision 
Status 
(CBC) 

Notice of Key or Private Decision   
Authorised By: N/A General Urgency N/A 

Special Urgency N/A 

Exempt Urgency N/A 

Record of Decision: 
 
1. That the progress report on the Building Control transformation project be noted. 
 
2. That the proposed programme for the future delivery of Building Control across 
Bolsover, North East Derbyshire and Chesterfield be recommended to the three 
Councils for support and approval.  
 

Reasons for Decision: 
To progress the Building Control transformation project across Derbyshire.  
 

Alternative options considered and rejected (if any):  
 

Declarations of interests: None 
 

Decision subject to call-in Yes 
Date of implementation if not called in: 17.11.2015 
 

Date Record Issued  
Contact Officer: Martin Elliott, Chesterfield Borough Council 
martin.elliott@chesterfield.gov.uk 

 
 
 
 

Page 5



 

Notes to Record of Decisions (Joint Working): 
 
CBC - CALL-IN REQUESTS 
The implementation of certain decisions is suspended until the call-in period has 
expired without a call-in being validly invoked. Any Member of the Council shall be 
entitled to call for a decision to be suspended by giving notice to the Monitoring 
Officer either by telephone, fax, email or in writing not later than 5.00 pm on the 
day following the date of the Joint Board meeting.  Any decisions so suspended 
shall not be capable of implementation for a period of five calendar days from the 
date of the Joint Board meeting.  During the call-in period a request may be made in 
respect of any decision so suspended by not less than one quarter of the total 
membership of the Overview and Performance Scrutiny Committee. To do this you 
will need to notify the Monitoring Officer in writing, by fax or by email by 5.00 pm on 
the date being five days following the day of the Joint Board meeting. 
 
BDC - CALL-IN REQUESTS 
 
The implementation of certain decisions is suspended until the call-in period has 
expired without a call-in being validly invoked. The call-in period is five clear days 
from the date of this decision notice.  During the call-in period at least two 
members may request certain decisions to be called in. You may do this in any of 
the following ways -  In writing - a written notice may be signed by one or more 
Members, • E mail - this may be done using a Members terminal within the Council 
Offices or where a member has the facility via the internet, • By fax - as with written 
notifications, the faxed message may contain the signature of more than one 
Member. 
 
NEDDC - CALL-IN REQUESTS 
 
The implementation of certain decisions is suspended until the call-in period has 
expired without a call-in being validly invoked. The call-in period is five working 
days after the publication of this decision. During the call-in period the Chair or 
Vice Chair together with three other members of any Overview and Scrutiny 
committee may object to a decision and call it in. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 6



 09.11.15 

1 
 
 

JOINT BOARD 
 

Monday, 9th November, 2015 
 

Present:- 
 

Bolsover District Council 
 
Councillor Mary Dooley (Chair) 
Dawn Clarke (BDC/NEDDC) 
Grant Galloway (BDC/NEDDC) 
Dan Swaine (BDC/NEDDC) 
 
Chesterfield Borough Council 
 
Councillor John Burrows 
Councillor Terry Gilby 
Huw Bowen 
Malcolm Clinton 
Barry Dawson 
Neil Johnson 
 
North East Derbyshire District Council 
 
Councillor Graham Baxter 
 

19  
  

DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS' AND OFFICERS' INTERESTS 
RELATING TO ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
 
No declarations were made. 
 

19  
  

DECLARATIONS OF MEMBERS' AND OFFICERS' INTERESTS 
RELATING TO ITEMS ON THE AGENDA  
 
No declarations were made. 
 

20  
  

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies were received from Councillors Hill and Syrett. 
 
 
 

Page 7



 09.11.15 

2 
 
 

21  
  

MINUTES  
 
AGREED -  
 
The notes and Record of Decisions of the meeting of the Joint Board held 
on 5 October, 2015 be noted. 
 

22  
  

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC  
 
AGREED -  
 
That under Regulation 21 (1)(b) of the Local Authorities (Executive 
Arrangements)(Access to Information)(England) Regulations 2000, the 
public be excluded from the meeting for the following item of business on 
the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of exempt information as 
defined by Paragraphs 1, 3 and 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A to the Local 
Government Act 1972’ on the grounds that it contains information relating 
to individuals, and to financial or business affairs and to consultations or 
negotiations, or contemplated consultations or negotiations, in connection 
with any labour relations matter arising between the authority and 
employees of, or office holders under, the authority. 
 

23  
  

REVIEW OF THE INTERNAL AUDIT STRUCTURE  
 
The Chesterfield Borough Council Chief Finance Officer submitted a 
report requesting approval to implement a proposed revised management 
and staffing structure for the Internal Audit Consortium.  
 
The Head of the Internal Audit Consortium retired in 2013 and since then 
the Deputy Head of the Consortium had been paid an honorarium to act 
up. This had been intended to be a temporary arrangement pending the 
outcome of the county-wide review of internal audit services. However 
progress on the review had been delayed and the review had to date had 
failed to come up with an alternative proposal which satisfied all of the 
partners.  
 
The proposed changes to the staffing structure of the Internal Audit 
Consortium were outlined in the report of the Chief Finance Officer along 
with the proposed new job descriptions. It was noted that the current 
consortium staff had been involved in the development of the proposed 
staffing structure and job descriptions and that UNISON had also been 

Page 8



 09.11.15 

3 
 
 

consulted regarding the restructure and that they were supportive of the 
proposals.  
 
The Chief Finance Officer noted that the proposed new structure of the 
Internal Audit Consortium would provide a net saving and that it was 
proposed that some of the savings made should be set aside for training 
and the buying in off specialist external support.  
 
AGREED –  
 

1. That the revised management and staffing structure and the 
associated salary grade changes, of the Internal Audit Consortium 
be approved and implemented.   

 
2. That £5,000 of the annual salary saving be transferred into the 

training budget and a further £5,000 into a provision for external 
support. 

 
24  

  
BCN BUILDING CONTROL - FUTURE BUSINESS CASE  
 
The Development and Growth Manager (Chesterfield Borough Council) 
presented a briefing on the latest business case for the Building Control 
Transformation project which aimed, in time to provide a single, unified 
Building Control Service across Derbyshire.  
 
The Development and Growth Manager also requested that the Leaders 
of Bolsover District Council, Chesterfield Borough Council and North East 
Derbyshire District Council should recommend the proposed business 
case and implementation programme to their respective councils for 
support and approval. 
 
AGREED -  

 
1. That the progress report on the Building Control transformation 

project be noted. 
 

2. That the proposed programme for the future delivery of Building 
Control across Bolsover, North East Derbyshire and Chesterfield be 
recommended to the three Councils for support and approval. 

 
 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



   
   
   
 

 

 

  

 

Chesterfield and North East 
Derbyshire Credit Union 

(CNEDCU) 
 

Your Local Community Bank 
run by local people to serve the 

financial needs of communities in 
Derbyshire  

 

 Business Plan 
 

October 2015 –  
September 2018 

 
Chesterfield Credit Union Limited is Authorised by the Prudential Regulation Authority and regulated by the 

Financial Conduct Authority and Prudential Regulation Authority. Reference Number 213954 

 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



 
 

 2 

Table of Contents 

 

1. About CNEDCU ............................................................................................................................................. 3 

2. Our Current Position  ..................................................................................................................................... 3 

3. Our Mission, Vision & Values ........................................................................................................................ 4   

4. The Market: Local Need  ............................................................................................................................... 4 

5. Our Aims & Objectives...................................... ............................. ...............................................................5 

6. Delivering the Business Plan ......................................................................................................................... 6 

a) Products & Services ...................................................................................................................................... 6  

Resources .......................................................................................................................................................... 7 

b) Human Resources ......................................................................................................................................... 7 

  Board  ........................................................................................................................................................ 7 
 

 Paid Staff & Volunteers ............................................................................................................................... 7 

c) Physical Resources and Assets ................................................................................................................ 8 

d) Financial Resources .................................................................................................................................. 8 

7.    Risks, Mitigation & Contingency Plans ....................................................................................................... 9 

Appendix 1 - Organisational Structure ............................................................................................................. 10 

Appendix 2 - Three Year Financial Plan .......................................................................................................... 11 

Appendix 3 - Strengths a Weakness Analysis ……………………………………………………....................... 12 

Appendix 4 - Risk Analysis .............................................................................................................................. 13 

 

  

Page 12



 
 

 3 

1. About Chesterfield & North East Derbyshire Credit Union (CNEDCU) 

Chesterfield & North East Derbyshire Credit Union (CNEDCU) is a not-for-profit financial co-operative which 
provides a safe and responsible place to save and borrow at a low rate of interest. The aim of all Credit 
Unions  is to encourage and support people to manage their money wisely and not get tempted to borrow 
from high interest lenders and even worse, from loan sharks. 
 
As with most high street banks and building societies CNEDCU is regulated and authorised by the Prudential 
Regulation Authority and Financial Conduct Authority (FCA), which means that its members’ money is 
completely safe and is also protected by the Financial Services Compensation Scheme (FSCS). CNEDCU’s 
Common Bond (the licence from the FCA which identifies where CNEDCU can operate) was extended in 
June 2015 to enable it to accept anyone who lives or works in the county of Derbyshire as a member. 
CNEDCU’s Reference Number is 213954.  
 

2. Our Current Position 

Our Business Plan sets out the various targets and profiles we need to meet to continue to be sustainable 
and broadly how we will go about achieving these.  Close liaison and working together with existing and 
future partners will be critical to our success. We believe that our targets are realistic and achievable but we 
also recognise that they are challenging and that there is very little headroom for failure without having to go 
back to our supporters for further funding.  Whilst this can’t be ruled out the Board are committed to making 
CNEDCU a successful, respected and financially viable credit union. 

Within the past five years the Board, staff and volunteers of CNEDCU have worked tirelessly to secure short-
term funding in order to establish the foundations for a sustainable organisation, assisted by National and 
Local Government recognition of the need for credit union services which service their local communities and 
help address financial exclusion and challenges relating to Welfare Reform. CNEDCU is recognised by 
members and service providers as a key vehicle to address these challenges in Chesterfield and North East 
Derbyshire and due to the recent extension of its Common Bond has the flexibility to work further afield. 

 
The significant financial and professional support in recent years from partner agencies (in particular 
Chesterfield Borough Council, Derbyshire County Council, Derby & Derbyshire Primary Care Trust, North 
East Derbyshire District Council and Rykneld Homes) has been fundamental in achieving some impressive 
growth and in the transformation of the credit union into an organisation ready and able to expand in the 
present financial landscape. The increase in the number of paid staff, the move to high street premises, the 
establishment of the Junior Savers Scheme and the front-loading of the Family Loan Scheme (FLS) have 
been vital to CNEDCU’s significant overall growth which is recognised in our Audited Accounts:  
 

Year Ended Members Shares Value Loans Balance 

September No £ No £ 

2012* 704 188,506 212 166,480 

2013 1153 245,205 491 300,582 

2014 1870 335,134 800 490,959 

* Growth 2012-14  177%  295% 

 
This has placed CNEDCU in a position where it can continue to grow in order to achieve its Mission, address 
its Vision and meet its Aims and Objectives, whilst maintaining its core Values. By meeting these Aims and 
Objectives we will have ensured financial sustainability and growth and improved our governance and 
operations. This will enable us to establish CNEDCU as a trusted, recognised brand within our local 
communities which provides a range of accessible financial products and services and supports the financial 
education of our members. 

 
For more background information on CNEDCU and its past successes please refer to our Annual Report, 
which can be found at our website: www.cnedcu.co.uk.     
 

 
     

Page 13

http://www.cnedcu.co.uk/


 
 

 4 

3. Our Mission, Vision & Values 
 
 

To achieve this CNEDCU is committed to providing a broad range of innovative financial products supported 
by the dedicated service of volunteers and professional staff. These products will be administered in 
accordance with sound management practices to maintain the financial strength of the Credit Union. 
The Board of Directors, Management and Staff of the Credit Union hereby affirm that the efforts of CNEDCU 
will be consistently and professionally dedicated to the accomplishment of this mission, which establishes 
the foundations for our overall Vision: 
 
 
 
 
 

We are committed to the belief that everyone has the right to access affordable loans and savings 
opportunities which reward financial prudence. We will also help people to understand how to most 
effectively manage their finances to avoid financial hardship, thus ensuring more secure and sustainable 
households and communities. This commitment is underpinned in our core Values: 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

4. The Market: Local Need 

The Office for National Statistics 2013 Mid-term population estimates for Derbyshire (including Derby) are 
1,027,583, with 203,311 residing in CNEDCU’s historic target area of Chesterfield Borough and North East 
Derbyshire District. In July 2007 the Financial Inclusion Taskforce reported on the difference between the 
demand for, and supply of affordable credit in each Local Authority area in Great Britain; 25 local authorities, 
including Chesterfield, were placed into red alert showing a serious need for that area, with a further 56, 
including North East Derbyshire, placed on Amber Alert, meaning a high but less urgent need to tackle the 
problem. Within our target population there remain numerous challenges for different age groups, including 
child and fuel poverty, unemployment, and reliance on household benefits. The Welfare Reform Act 2012 
continues to drive the biggest changes in the benefits system since its history, with changes affecting all who 
are of working age and in receipt of key benefits such as JSA, DLA and housing benefits. Credit Unions are 
acknowledged as having the experience and services necessary to assist benefit claimants directly, through 
our core services of loans and savings, and of assisting those who deliver services such as District and 
County Council, Housing Associations, private landlords and community organisations. Our services and 
support will ensure continued financial inclusion and increase our member numbers. As the full ramifications 
of Welfare Reform are still unclear, we will continue to work with those organisations whose clients will be 
affected and will flex services and products as appropriate. 

The increase in Family Loan Scheme uptake has seen a significant demand in payments, making the system 
of handwritten cheques an increasingly inefficient delivery approach. E-cards will be promoted as an 
alternative access model. Increased demand for on-line payments and access to savings accounts is rising, 
as well as demand from new customer groups with their own particular needs, such as younger people.  

These needs will guide our Aims and Objectives listed in section 5 and shape our service focus for 2015/16.  

Mission Statement: Working towards the financial inclusion of all throughout Derbyshire 

Vision: CNEDCU will be a financially stable, innovative and responsive Credit Union, widely recognised and 

respected by members and partners for our ability to deliver a range of products which meet local need, the quality of 
our customer service and partnership working and our commitment to ensuring the financial inclusion of residents 

and workers across Derbyshire. 

 

Values:  
 Accessibility – we will ensure that our written materials will be clear and easy to understand and that our 

members can access our services in the most appropriate way, whether at our office, through our secure website 
or collection points hosted by our partners.  

 Confidentiality – we will act with discretion to protect our members’ privacy 

 Flexibility – we will continually review and develop our products, services and methods of delivery to ensure that 
we meet the ever-changing needs of our members  

 Honesty – we will be sincere and open in our support to members, providing frank advice and clearly explaining 
our interest rates  

 Inclusivity – we will support all residents within Derbyshire who wish to use our services however we can, no-
matter their personal circumstances and enable our members to have a say in how we operate 

 Impartiality – we will provide fair and objective guidance and support to all of our members 

 Reliability – we will provide a consistent and dependable service to our members and partners 

 Sustainability – we will promote thrift and a savings culture to our members to help them maintain sustainable 
households, whilst we will ensure that we run on sound, ethical and financially sustainable principles through the 
use and control of members’ savings for their mutual benefit 

 

Page 14



 
 

 5 

5. Our Aims & Objectives 

In order to achieve our vision and be a viable and sustainable business by September 2016 our Aims and 
Objectives are set below, which, when achieved, form the backbone of CNEDCU’s public identity as a well-
known, respected, vibrant, and trusted Credit Union. Our Aims identify what we wish to accomplish, with our 
Objectives of how we intend to so this listed below. Where possible we have established SMART targets to 
enable us to measure the progress being made throughout the year and share the results of our efforts in 
our September Annual Report. 

 

Aims, Objectives and Measures Position 
Sept 2015 

Target by 
Sept 2016 

Target by 
Sept 2017 

Target by 
Sept 2018 

Aim 1: Have strong strategic leadership that manages operations, costs and risks to ensure business 
sustainability and economical, efficient and effective services 

Be financially sustainable, funded through operational income 
rather than grant funding (by % of operational income) 

100% 100% 100% 100% 

Average interest rate earned > 2.5% per month 2.5% > 2.5% > 2.5% > 2.5% 

Develop a package of variable interest rates (target by Sept 
2015) 

Loyalty 
Loans at 

2%/Month 

TBA TBA TBA 

Reduce the level of bad debt (by % of overall debt) 8% 6% 6% 6% 

Identify which operating and decision making processes can 
be streamlined to ensure ordered, structured governance 

- Targeted 
Reviews 

Targeted 
Reviews 

Targeted 
Reviews 

Develop the skills of our volunteers, staff and board members 
to enable them to provide a first class, professional, efficient, 
timely and friendly  service to members and delivery partners   

Skills audit 
undertaken  

Skills audit 
reviewed  & 

training 
delivered 

Skills audit 
reviewed  & 
training 
delivered 

Skills audit 
reviewed  & 
training 
delivered 

Engage with local, regional and national organisations and 
partnerships as appropriate to harness opportunities and 
enable us to better support financial inclusion in our area  

Review of 
meetings 
attended  

All 
suitable 

networks 
engaged   

All 
suitable 
networks 
engaged   

All 
suitable 
networks 
engaged   

Aim 2: Be client focused, developing a range of accessible products and services which meet members 
needs and enables a significant, sustained growth in membership 

Ensure a significant, sustained growth of our profile to the 
general public through targeted publicity, marketing, 
engagement and consultation  

Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing Ongoing 

Increase the number of members using the pre-paid card (by 
% of members)  

N/A 10% 20% 25% 

Increase the number of loan applications completed on-line (as 
a % of all applications)  

N/A 5% 10% 15% 

Increase the number of new member applications completed 
on-line (as a % of all applications)   

M/A 10% 10% 10% 

Increase the number of members utilising the payroll deduction 
facility (members) 

N/A 50 75 100 

Aim 3: Provide a secure and attractive home for member’s savings   

Increase the number of active members (membership 
numbers) 

1900 2,000 2200 2250 

Increase the value of shares (as cash value) 400,000 £420,000 £440,000 £460,000 

Pay an annual dividend on savings (at % interest) 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 1.0% 

Aim 4: Provide a range of timely, affordable loans at competitive rates 

Increase the value of loans (as cash value) 600,000 £610,000 £620,000 £630,000 

Ensure that eligible loan applications are processed as quickly 
as possible (days)  

7 7 7 7 

Aim 5: Promote the training and education of members in the wise use of money and in the management of 
their household financial affairs 

Promote thrift by encouraging members to save including the 
continued development of the Junior Savers Scheme (number 

14 16 18 20 

Page 15



 
 

 6 

of schools engaged) 

 

6. Delivering the Business Plan 

a) Products & Services 
Our current list of products and services is listed below along with those which are currently in development 
and due to commence shortly.  

 Savings (currently paying a 1% dividend on the average of the annual balance held) 
o Standard: Our accounts for savers aged 16+ 
o  Junior Savers Scheme (JSS): A regular savings account operated in infant, junior and secondary 

schools for those 16 and under, which also helps to instil good financial and budgeting habits in the 
next generation. Following evaluation of our pilot JSS we recognise the need to develop the service 
further within local primary and secondary schools and will initially seek external funding to help to 
achieve this, at least until September 2016. 

o Corporate and Charitable Savings: Accounts for ethical investors seeking to help local community 
by allowing their secured deposits be loaned to credit union members. 

 

 Loans (interest rates are dependent upon the product) 
o Standard Loans: Loans to members which have established a regular savings pattern and made 

within 5 working days of an eligible application being received (usually 2/3 days in practice). Variable 
interest between 2-3% per month, dependent upon member payment history and savings over 
£1,000. 

o Family Loan Scheme: A very popular instant loan of up to £500 charging 3% interest per month, 
paid to families or individuals in receipt of Child Benefit (which is paid directly to CNEDCU). The 
whole child benefit can be used to make the repayments, but a lesser amount is usually agreed with 
the member following a robust budgeting interview. The 'surplus' amount can then either be left in as 
savings, withdrawn weekly/monthly or split between savings and withdrawal. 

o Corporate and Charitable Loans: Loans to businesses and voluntary and community groups who 
are members of the credit union. Variable interest between 2-3% per month, dependent upon 
member payment history and savings over £1,000. 

o Rent Direct Scheme: Landlords will no longer be able to receive rent payments direct to them. The 
Universal Credit will see households receiving all benefits in one payment including housing benefit. 

o Variable interest between 2-3% per month, dependent upon member payment history and savings 
over £1,000. 

o Council Community Loans: Managed in a similar way to the FLS, these funds have been 
dedicated by Parish Councils who advise whether the loan is either for residents from their Parish or 
from the local District. The loans are for a maximum of £100 or £200 depending upon Parish. 

o Chesterfield & North East Derbyshire Repossession Prevention Funds: Administered on 
through referral from one of the respective Housing Options, an instant loan to specifically cover rent 
in advance or a bond. 
 

 Ease of Accessibility to Funds and Services 
o Budget accounts (Jam Jar Accounts): To help members manage funds and budget for 

bills/expenses more effectively. Currently investigating developing a pilot with Rykneld Homes.  
o CredEcard: a prepaid visa card for benefits/salaries to be loaded onto to assist with budgeting. 
o Payroll Deduction Scheme: Available to all members working through participating employers to 

direct savings to CNEDCU at time of wage/salary payment.  
o On-line member applications: Due to be available by December 2015. 
o On-line loan applications: Due to be available by December 2015. 

 

 Service Development: Partnership Working and Customer Engagement 
We will seek to expand our product portfolio where appropriate and to the benefit of the business, for 
example the development of differential loan products, by working with others and our customers, e.g.:  
o Working with 2 other Derbyshire Credit Unions to develop a mutually agreed interest rate in order to 

provide consistency in incentivising payroll deduction across the County 
o Working directly with the DWP to benefit from expert marketing support, advice and funding, initially 

around increasing and attracting Tier 1 and 2 members 
o Maximising the opportunities from the recent Church of England campaign against payday lenders 
o Working with potential partners in promoting credit union services through their own networks (such 

as the NEDDC reception screen or dedicated DCC credit union signposting web-page) 

Page 16



 
 

 7 

o Learning from other CU’s through the CUEP project, trade association and regional forums 
o Fostering mutually beneficial relations with the existing banking sector 
o Adopting best practice from the 2015 Derbyshire County Council Scrutiny Review of Credit Unions. 

Page 17



 
 

 8 

Resources 

In order to meet the business Aims and Objectives and deliver these products and services CNEDCU will 
seek to maximise the outcomes it can deliver from its available resources, which are its Human Resources, 
Physical Resources & Assets and Financial Resources. In parallel with this the Board and Manager will 
maintain a constant overview for additional resources, which primarily may be in the form of external grant 
funding or partnership working opportunities. 

b) Human Resources 

There are three core elements to CNEDCU’s workforce: the Volunteers, Paid Staff and the Board; Appendix 
1 shows the current organisation structure of the business. We also recognise the added value which many 
of our members and partners bring, whether it is helping to publicise and promote our services through word 
of mouth, giving customer feedback which helps us to improve our delivery and efficiency to meet their 
needs and expectations, or identifying other opportunities which we can harness. 

 Board 

The CNEDCU Board meets monthly and focuses on the strategic planning of businesses. It consists of ten 
members who bring a wealth of experience from the private, public and voluntary and community sector from 
a range of backgrounds including: finance, funding, organisation and project management, housing, working 
with vulnerable people, training and partnership working. Some Board Members have also undertaken 
training on issues specific to credit unions (e.g. money laundering) to ensure that CNEDCU fulfils its duties in 
accordance with statutory expectations. Most Board Members have a responsibility for at least one of the 
following areas: 
 

 Chair  Secretary  Data Protection  

 Vice Chair     Compliance      Money Laundering  
 Treasurer  Complaints     

 
Having “portfolio” responsibilities enables workload to be more appropriately managed and specific focus to 
be directed to ensure that the following duties and approaches to working are undertaken: 

 Executive skills  Implementation of Board 
strategy 

 Training 

 Strategic focus skills  Customer issues, including 
complaints and satisfaction 

 Financial management 

 Entrepreneurship 
 

 Logistics and management 
issues 

 Management of Consortia and 
Partnership arrangements 

 Community based 
representation 

 Service points 
 

 Establishing policies and 
procedures 

 Customer representative – 
preferably somebody who has 
experience of taking out the 
kind of loans that the Credit 
Union offers 

 Product development and 
implementation 

 

 

 
Should the current Board identify weaknesses in any of these issues, training will be sought, or if appropriate 
new Board Members sought who possess the appropriate skills and experience.  
 
To enable the Board to maintain focus on both strategic planning as well as more operational issues related 
to product implementation and customer satisfaction, it will investigate the development of a separate 
operational group free to focus more time on such issues and enable the Board to work more efficiently and 
effectively rather than spreading its focus and time commitments too thinly. A clearer definition of the two 
groups work, and the make-up of each group needs to be discussed further but in order to maximise the 
experience gained by those working at the front-line of delivery, the operational group should include 
members of staff and key volunteers. This will help us to better realise the potential of partnership working 
with delivery partners such as housing associations etc. 

  

Page 18



 
 

 9 

 Paid Staff & Volunteers 
Besides the Manager, the majority of Paid Staff and Volunteers are part time; there are currently 25 
volunteers and 7 paid staff, who between them have a wealth of experience in either volunteering with or 
being employed with all having over two years’ experience. Staff are motivated with a good professional 
attitude and understanding of the credit union business and are keen to see the success of the business as a 
whole; harnessing this experience is therefore important to the future shaping of services, as alluded to in 
the previous section. The relationship with management is open, honest and staff feel that they can have a 
say in the way they carry out their day to day duties and that they can have influence over the success or 
failure in aspects of the business.  

Many of the paid staff and volunteers work on areas of specialism, for example cashiers, debt recovery, the 
Junior Saver’s Scheme and the Supervisory Committee and collectively have developed skills in social 
marketing, demand management and working at high volume with a range of different products. This has 
enabled CNEDCU to learn much more about the levels of support needed by families in our area. 
 
The financial forecasts attached to this plan, show that with the increase in membership, staff resources will 
need to increase and this will alleviate any new pressures that these initiatives and changes will bring to and 
show the value management places on them. To re-emphasise this value, greater effort will be made to 
establish and review individual development plans so that individuals can better understand their longer term 
prospects within the business and learning and development opportunities can be identified. This will go 
some way to mitigating the risk that by not undertaking the reviews people may become unmotivated or 
decide to leave and help with the internal succession planning of the business.  
 

c) Physical Resources & Assets 
In recent years we have significantly invested in our physical resources and assets. Although mindful of cost, 
we have implemented the following to ensure that we are a progressive and responsive organisation:  
 

 ICT Infrastructure: In 2015 we upgraded to a fully networked office ICT system and continue to develop 
provision from our website. We work closely with our software provider (Kesho, using the Curtains Too 
SQL programme running on Lenovo servers) to ensure that our services are efficient for internal 
operations to enable us to provide an effective service to our members. We are now in a position to be 
able to offer on-line applications for membership and loans as well as forecast loan repayment levels.  
 

 Office Infrastructure: We moved into our new office on Soresby Street, Chesterfield in May 2014 to 
increase our high street presence and accessibility. In mid-2015 we agreed to extend our back-room 
facility to improve office efficiency by enabling as many volunteers willing to support delivery to attend, 
therefore helping to develop and expand new services such as the Junior Savers Scheme. In addition to 
our main office, there is a facility for members to make deposits at Clay Cross Housing Office and North 
Wingfield Community Resource Centre. 

 

 Communication & Marketing: In addition to our website we produce leaflets, posters and written 
information on our services tailored to the audience, whether it is members of the public, service 
providers, delivery partners or our funders. To raise and maintain the profile of CNEDCU we attend and 
engage with a number of meetings and events, whether it is formal presentations to Councillors, having 
a stall at community events or networking with other agencies in networks to address financial exclusion. 
Our Secretary attends the East Midland’s Credit Union Forum, Board Members engage with Financial 
action and Advice Derbyshire (FAAD) and the Derbyshire Anti-Poverty Group, whilst the Manager, staff 
and volunteers engage with other more localised networks; it is to the credit of those involved that good 
working relationships have been established, enabling  us to identify and harness new opportunities. 

 

d) Financial Resources 
The Three Year Financial Plan for the business is detailed in Appendix 2 and identifies the positive financial 
trajectory which the business is following. In recent time we have done much to build the financial 
foundations which have enabled us to pay a divend to savers, move to and expand high street premises and 
upgrade our ICT infrastructure, including:  

 We have secured or are close to securing much of the necessary short-term funding 

 Government support and financial backing for the credit union movement 

 Needed and supported by local authorities, and others to address issues of welfare reform and 
financial exclusion, recognised in their Corporate Plans and major strategies (such as the Derbyshire 
Anti-Poverty Strategy and Health & Well-Being Strategy for Derbyshire). 

Page 19



 
 

 10 

We recognise that we have limited resources in order to easily achieve our aspirations, whilst external 
expectations from partners and funders can place significant demands on our time which may result in 
pressure on staff and finances. 
 
Profitability will be improved by increasing our critical mass through growth but other areas we intend to 
pursue to improve our financial position include: 

 reviewing and extending level of fees e.g. joining fee other fees 

 being more proactive in investing unused capital 

 recovering costs of services e.g. credit checks 

 reducing cost of bad debts including introducing payments by debit card, reviewing debt collection 
methods and organisations, working written off debt harder. 

 continuing to review all areas of cost including staff, accommodation, IT, telephony and printing etc. 

 Seeking external funds to support projects and equipment purchase 

 

7. Risks, Mitigation & Contingency Plans 

Within the past year we have made significant improvements in seven key areas: 

1. Increase in critical mass 
2. Make the most of our near to high street presence 
3. Response to Welfare Reform 
4. Improve profitability 
5. Interest rates 
6. Governance 
7. Product development and accessibility through CUEP 
 
We are therefore confident that if we achieve our targets we can become financially sustainable and be able 
to provide a range of competitive and quality products and services which are tailored to meeting the needs 
of our customer base. We accept that the targets are challenging but with the support of partners (including 
the Local Authorities, statutory service providers, the  government and local communities) and the 
commitment of the Board, staff and volunteers we are confident that they can be met.  
 
Appendix 3 details our SWOT (Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, Threats) analysis undertaken at the 
CNEDCU Away Day Board held on 20

th
 April 2015. Our Strengths and how we will harness opportunities 

have been addressed within the appropriate sections of this Business Plan. 
 
By considering the Threats from the SWOT analysis we have identified the key risks to the business, which 
are identified in Appendix 4. We do not believe that any risk is both highly likely to occur with a highly 
detrimental impact and have considered approaches to mitigate all risks no matter their likelihood or impact. 
We feel that we have the appropriate infrastructure in place in order to mitigate against these risks and 
ensure the successful development of CNEDCU through the delivery of this Business Plan.  
 
We will continually monitor and evaluate our performance but if we reach a point where we don’t believe we 
can be successful with our current business model our next steps would be as follows:  
 
1. Review the services provided to establish whether refocus is required, cutting non-core or loss-making 

services as appropriate  
2. Explore whether we can revert to a volunteer based business  
3. Inform & discuss with the Regulators 
4. Talk to other Credit Unions about possible merger 
5. Talk to interested parties who may be prepared to take over the credit union responsibilities  
6. Start administration proceedings for the business to cease to trade 
 
With the management infrastructure in place we believe that we would only have to go as far as stage 1 on 
this list in order to ensure that the business would remain solvent and delivering core services. 
 
The CNEDCU Business Plan will be reviewed in mid 2016 to inform the focus and priorities for the October 
2016 to September 2017 Business Plan. 
 

  

Page 20



 
 

 11 

Organisational Structure Appendix 1 

 

 

 

  

Page 21



 
 

 12 

Three Year Financial Plan – Appendix 2

 

C
h

e
s
t
e

r
f
i
e

l
d

 
a

n
d

 
N

o
r
t
h

 
E

a
s
t
 
D

e
r
b

y
s
h

i
r
e

 
C

r
e

d
i
t
 
U

n
i
o

n
 
L
t
d

M
e

m
b

e
r
s
 
L
o

a
n

s
 
I
N

T
E

R
E

S
T

 
A

T
 
2

%
 
 
-
A

P
R

 
2

6
%

B
u

d
g

e
t
 
F

o
r
 
Y

e
a

r
 
E

n
d

i
n

g
 
S

e
p

t
e

m
b

e
r
 
2

0
1

6
 
a

n
d

 
P

l
a

n
 
f
o

r
 
2

0
1

6
 
-
 
2

0
1

8

F
a

m
i
l
y

 
L
o

a
n

s
 
I
N

T
E

R
E

S
T

 
A

T
 
3

%
 
-
 
A

P
R

 
4

1
%

P
r
o

j
e

c
t
e

d
 
R

e
s
u

l
t
s
 

B
u

d
g

e
t

Y
e

a
r
 
2

Y
e

a
r
 
3

2
0

1
4

/
2

0
1

5
2

0
1

5
/
2

0
1

6
2

0
1

6
/
2

0
1

7
2

0
1

7
/
2

0
1

8

I
N

C
O

M
E

£
£

£
£

£
£

£
£

E
n

t
r
a

n
c
e

 
F

e
e

s
1

9
3

0
1

5
0

0
1

6
5

0
1

8
5

0

I
n

t
e

r
e

s
t
 
o

n
 
L
o

a
n

s
:

M
e

m
b

e
r
s

7
3

0
0

0
7

1
0

3
8

7
4

3
6

8
7

6
0

3
3

F
a

m
i
l
y

 
L
o

a
n

s
9

4
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
0

1
0

8
0

0
0

1
1

2
0

0
0

O
t
h

e
r

0
1

6
7

0
0

0
1

7
1

0
3

8
1

8
2

3
6

8
1

8
8

0
3

3

G
r
a

n
t
s
:

D
C

C
 
(
M

a
n

a
g

e
r
s
 
W

a
g

e
s
)

1
1

6
0

0
0

0
0

C
B

C
1

0
0

0
0

5
0

0
0

0
0

N
E

D
D

C
 
(
H

i
g

h
 
S

t
r
e

e
t
 P

r
e

m
i
s
e

s
 
C

o
n

t
r
i
b

u
t
i
o

n
)

3
0

0
0

3
0

0
0

3
0

0
0

0

D
C

C
 
P

u
b

l
i
c
 
H

e
a

l
t
h

 
(
S

c
h

o
o

l
s
 
p

r
o

j
e

c
t
)

0
9

0
0

0
0

D
C

C
 
A

d
d

i
t
i
o

n
a

l
 
S

t
a

f
f
 
S

u
p

p
o

r
t

0
0

0
0

D
C

C
 
P

u
b

l
i
c
 
H

e
a

l
t
h

 
(
v

i
a

 
N

E
D

B
D

 
(
R

e
n

t
 G

r
a

n
t
/
W

e
b

s
i
t
e

)
)

0
0

0
0

C
o

m
i
c
 
R

e
l
i
e

f
5

0
0

0
5

0
0

0
0

0

D
C

C
 
P

u
b

l
i
c
 
H

e
a

t
h

 
(
V

i
a

 
N

E
D

B
D

,
 
R

u
n

n
i
n

g
 
C

o
s
t
 C

o
n

t
r
i
b

u
t
i
o

n
)

1
5

0
0

0
0

0
0

N
E

D
D

C
 
H

o
u

s
i
n

g
 
O

p
t
i
o

n
s

0
1

2
5

0
1

2
5

0
1

2
5

0

O
t
h

e
r

0
4

4
6

0
0

0
2

3
2

5
0

4
2

5
0

0
1

2
5

0

B
a

n
k

 
I
n

t
e

r
e

s
t

3
7

0
3

0
0

3
0

0
3

0
0

I
n

c
o

m
e

 
f
r
o

m
 
T

r
a

i
n

i
n

g
0

0
0

0

B
a

d
 
D

e
b

t
s
 
R

e
c
o

v
e

r
e

d
3

2
4

8
3

0
0

0
3

0
0

0
3

0
0

0

C
U

E
P

 
M

e
m

b
e

r
s

0
0

0
0

C
U

E
P

 
S

a
v

i
n

g
s

0
0

0
0

C
U

E
P

 
L
o

a
n

s
7

2
0

0
1

0
0

0
0

0

U
n

i
v

e
r
s
a

l
 
C

r
e

d
i
t

0
0

0
0

T
o

t
a

l
 
I
n

c
o

m
e

2
2

4
3

4
8

2
0

0
0

8
8

1
9

1
5

6
8

1
9

4
4

3
3

E
X

P
E

N
D

I
T

U
R

E

S
t
a

f
f
 
C

o
s
t
s
:

S
a

l
a

r
y

 
M

a
n

a
g

e
r
 
1

 
F

T
E

2
7

5
0

0
2

8
1

8
8

2
8

8
9

2

S
a

l
a

r
y

 
A

d
m

i
n

 
A

s
s
i
s
t
a

n
t
  
1

F
T

E
0

1
6

9
0

0
1

7
3

2
3

1
7

7
5

6

D
e

v
e

l
o

p
m

e
n

t
 O

f
f
i
c
e

r
1

2
5

0
0

1
2

8
1

3
1

3
1

3
3

C
a

s
h

i
e

r
 
 
(
£

9
/
h

o
u

r
 
3

0
 
h

o
u

r
s
)

0
1

2
4

8
0

1
2

7
9

2
1

3
1

1
2

C
a

s
h

i
e

r
 
 
(
£

9
/
h

o
u

r
 
1

0
 
h

o
u

r
s
)

4
7

0
0

4
8

1
8

4
9

3
8

S
c
h

o
o

l
 
D

e
v

e
l
o

p
m

e
n

t
 a

s
s
i
s
t
a

n
t
 (

£
9

/
h

o
u

r
 
1

5
 
h

o
u

r
s
)

7
1

0
0

7
2

7
8

7
4

5
9

P
a

r
t
 t

i
m

e
 
a

s
s
i
s
t
a

n
t
 (

£
9

/
h

o
u

r
 
1

0
 
h

o
u

r
s
)

5
2

0
0

5
3

3
0

5
4

6
3

B
o

o
k

k
e

e
p

e
r

3
8

0
0

3
8

9
5

3
9

9
2

C
o

n
t
i
n

g
e

n
c
y

 
(
£

9
/
h

o
u

r
 
8

 
h

o
u

r
s
)

3
8

0
0

3
8

9
5

3
9

9
2

E
m

p
l
o

y
e

r
 
N

I
0

4
7

6
0

4
8

7
9

5
0

0
1

P
e

n
s
i
o

n
9

2
5

0
0

5
0

0
9

9
2

4
0

5
0

0
1

0
1

7
0

9
5

0
0

1
0

4
2

3
9

T
r
a

v
e

l
 
a

n
d

 
s
u

b
s
i
s
t
e

n
c
e

E
m

p
l
o

y
e

e
s
/
v

o
l
u

n
t
e

e
r
s

0
1

5
0

0
1

5
0

0
1

5
0

0

O
t
h

e
r
 
C

o
s
t
s
 
r
e

d
u

n
d

a
n

c
y

0
0

0
1

5
0

0
0

1
5

0
0

0
1

5
0

0

T
r
a

i
n

i
n

g
0

1
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

S
u

b
t
o

t
a

l
 
S

t
a

f
f
 
C

o
s
t
s

9
2

5
0

0
1

0
1

7
4

0
1

0
4

2
0

9
1

0
6

7
3

9

P
r
e

m
i
s
e

s
 
C

o
s
t
s

R
e

n
t
s

0
1

4
6

4
0

1
4

6
4

0
1

8
0

0
0

R
a

t
e

s
0

1
4

0
0

1
4

7
0

1
5

4
4

I
n

s
u

r
a

n
c
e

0
2

0
0

0
2

0
0

0
2

0
0

0

P
r
o

p
e

r
t
y

 
M

a
i
n

t
a

i
n

a
n

c
e

 
&

 
S

e
r
v

i
c
e

s
0

5
0

0
5

0
0

5
0

0

P
o

w
e

r
,
 
H

e
a

t
 &

 
L
i
g

h
t

0
2

7
2

0
2

8
5

6
2

9
9

9

W
a

t
e

r
0

2
5

3
0

0
3

0
0

2
1

5
6

0
3

1
5

2
1

7
8

1
3

3
1

2
5

3
7

3

T
e

l
e

p
h

o
n

e
 
&

 
C

o
m

p
u

t
e

r
s

T
e

l
e

p
h

o
n

e
s

2
0

0
0

2
0

0
0

2
0

0
0

C
o

m
p

u
t
e

r
/
E

q
u

i
p

 
M

a
i
n

t
e

n
a

n
c
e

1
0

0
0

3
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

3
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

3
0

0
0

A
u

d
i
t
 
&

 
P

r
o

f
e

s
s
i
o

n
a

l
 
F

e
e

s

A
u

d
i
t
o

r
3

3
0

0
4

0
0

0
4

0
0

0
4

0
0

0

C
U

N
A

4
0

0
0

4
2

1
4

4
2

0
0

4
4

0
0

A
B

C
U

L
2

0
0

0
1

9
2

0
2

2
0

0
2

2
0

0

F
G

S
A

 
a

n
d

 
O

t
h

e
r
 
P

r
o

f
e

s
s
i
o

n
a

l
 
F

e
e

s
0

1
5

0
0

1
5

0
0

1
5

0
0

F
i
d

e
l
i
t
y

 
B

o
n

d
 
I
n

s
u

r
a

n
c
e

0
9

3
0

0
1

2
0

0
1

2
8

3
4

1
2

0
0

1
3

1
0

0
1

2
0

0
1

3
3

0
0

P
r
i
n

t
i
n

g
,
 
S

t
a

t
i
o

n
e

r
y

 
&

 
P

o
s
t
a

g
e

P
r
i
n

t
e

r
 
C

o
s
t
s

1
0

6
0

0
3

0
0

0
3

0
0

0
3

0
0

0

P
r
i
n

t
i
n

g
 
E

x
t
e

r
n

a
l

0
1

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
1

0
0

0

P
o

s
t
a

g
e

0
1

0
6

0
0

6
0

0
4

6
0

0
6

0
0

4
6

0
0

6
0

0
4

6
0

0

A
d

v
e

r
t
i
s
i
n

g
 
&

 
P

u
b

l
i
c
i
t
y

0
1

5
0

0
1

5
0

0
1

5
0

0

S
t
a

f
f
 
P

a
r
t
i
e

s
0

5
0

0
5

0
0

5
0

0

B
a

d
 
a

n
d

 
D

o
u

b
t
f
u

l
 
D

e
b

t
s

F
a

m
i
l
y

 
l
o

a
n

s
3

0
0

0
3

0
0

0
3

0
0

0
3

0
0

0

M
e

m
b

e
r
s

2
6

0
0

0
2

9
0

0
0

1
4

3
0

0
1

7
3

0
0

1
5

7
5

0
1

8
7

5
0

1
6

2
0

0
1

9
2

0
0

O
t
h

e
r
 
L
e

g
a

l
 
F

e
e

s
2

5
0

0
2

0
0

6
1

0
0

0
1

0
0

0
1

0
0

0

C
U

E
P

 
C

o
s
t
s

2
5

0
2

0
0

0
2

0
0

0
2

0
0

0

D
a

t
a

 
P

r
o

t
e

c
t
i
o

n
0

3
5

3
5

3
5

D
e

p
r
e

c
i
a

t
i
o

n
3

5
0

0
3

5
0

0
3

5
0

0
3

5
0

0

B
a

n
k

 
F

e
e

s
5

0
4

9
6

0
6

0

O
t
h

e
r
 
E

x
p

e
n

s
e

s
5

0
0

5
0

0
5

0
0

5
0

0

C
a

s
h

 
S

h
o

r
t

0
0

0
0

T
O

T
A

L
 
E

X
P

E
N

D
I
T

U
R

E
1

7
3

0
0

6
1

7
0

1
1

8
1

7
4

5
3

5
1

8
1

3
0

7

S
u

r
p

l
u

s
/
(
D

e
f
i
c
i
t
)

5
1

3
4

2
2

9
9

7
0

1
7

0
3

4
1

3
1

2
6

D
i
v

i
d

e
n

d
B

a
s
e

d
 
o

n
 
1

%
3

8
0

0
4

0
0

0
4

4
0

0
4

8
4

0

S
u

r
p

l
u

s
/
(
D

e
f
i
c
i
t
)

A
f
t
e

r
 
D

i
v

i
d

e
n

d
4

7
5

4
2

2
5

9
7

0
1

2
6

3
4

8
2

8
6

G
r
a

n
t
s

4
4

6
0

0
2

3
2

5
0

4
2

5
0

1
2

5
0

S
u

r
p

l
u

s
/
(
D

e
f
i
c
i
t
)

(
B

e
f
o

r
e

 
G

r
a

n
t
s
)

2
9

4
2

2
,
7

2
0

8
3

8
4

7
0

3
6

Page 22



 
 

 13 

SWOT Analysis – Strengths, Weaknesses, Opportunities, Threats – Appendix 3 

 
Our SWOT analysis undertaken at the CNEDCU Away Day Board held on 20

th
 April 2015 

identified the following: 
 

a)  STRENGTHS 

 we are known for our strong ethical approach, founded in community and social purpose. 

 we are established in Chesterfield and North East Derbyshire (nice, clear footprint) and 
have the ability to operate across Derbyshire 

 we have the basis for strong partnerships with County, Borough and District Councils, 
Housing Associations – potential clients who deliver community based objectives 

 there is an overall need for the products we can offer 

 we have people with passion and energy throughout the organisation 

 our balance sheet is cash rich (though resource poor) 
 
b)  WEAKNESSES 

 we have limited resources 

 we lack the finance to promote ourselves 

 we don’t offer enough competitive products (interest rates too high) 

 we have not yet realised the full potential of partnership working with the housing 
associations etc. 

 we are being pulled in too many directions for our resources 

 we have not achieved critical mass 
 

   c)  OPPORTUNITIES 

 potential support from Housing Associations, Local Government and Utilities for products 
and services that will help their customers better manage their money and protect their 
own income stream 

 high level of demand for borrowing as demonstrated by the success of pay day, door to 
door, illegal lenders etc. 

 potential demand and synergies from the introduction of universal credit, particularly 
relating to the needs of Housing Associations and other landlords 

 potential to access DWP funding to facilitate the introduction of universal credits and to 
modernise and expand Credit Unions 

 we can extend our member  base to include public and private sector including small 
businesses 

 partnerships with banks and other institutions particularly those tasked with helping the 
financially excluded 

 
d)  THREATS 

 competition from other Credit Unions 

 lack of awareness of CNEDCU from potential members 

 need to achieve and maintain 3% Capital Assets Ratio 

 competition from housing associations and large employers setting up their own Credit 
Union/ schemes 

 competition from organisations such as Wonga, Provident etc. 

 due diligence issues – governance and constitutional issues need to be reviewed 

 human resources and staff/volunteer training 

 Curtains software no longer supported 
 

 
 

Page 23



 
 

 14 

 
 

Risk Analysis – Appendix 4 
 

 
What is the Risk? 

Likelihood Impact Mitigation 

Plan does not reflect 
CUEP targets 

High Low Demonstrate the validity of our numbers and profile 
to ABCUL. Although generating income, CUEP is 
not essential to the core finances of CNEDCU 

CUEP does not deliver High Low Strong project plan and governance. Widespread 
buy-in from all parties. Although generating 
income, CUEP is not essential to core finances 

Business Plan targets 
are not met 

Medium High Continual monitoring of all targets, identifying 
where there may be a shortfall and addressing in a 
timely manner  

We run out of funds Medium High Continually reviewing financial performance and 
liaising with potential supporters. Reserves 
continue to increase  

Due diligence issues: 
governance & 
constitutional issues  

Medium Medium Will be reviewed by the Board and Supervisory 
Committee on an ongoing basis to ensure that all 
policies and procedures are fit for purpose 

Competition from other 
Credit Unions/ 
Community Banks 

Medium Medium Ongoing publicity to raise awareness and  
development of accessible attractive products 
delivered efficiently 

Lack of awareness of 
CNEDCU from potential 
members 

Medium Medium Publicity and promotion will be undertaken through 
press releases, website, leaflets and attendance at 
events as well as through harnessing the 
communications facilities of partner agencies 

Key staff/volunteers 
leave 
 

Medium Medium Succession plan and training to be identified for 
internal recruitment. Advertise posts as appropriate 
if external recruitment necessary 

Board members leave 
 

Medium Medium Succession plan and training to be identified; 
appropriate individuals sought through external 
advertising/networking if necessary to fill skills gaps 

Need to achieve and 
maintain 3% Capital 
Assets Ratio 

Low High The Capital Assets Ratio is assessed at every 
Board meeting 

Internal resources not 
able to meet the 
challenges 

Low High Good communication, ongoing support and 
commitment from Board, management and 
members. Recognition & acceptance that this is the 
only way for us to achieve sustainability 

Loan Interest Rates are 
unattractive and Loan 
Book reduces 

Low High Communicate the alternative rates being charged 
to unsecured borrowers of less than £1,000 

CURTAINS Software no 
Longer supported 

Low High Research other software providers. Impact would 
be short term 

Competition from 
housing associations 
and large employers 
setting up their own 
Credit Union/schemes 

Low Medium The efforts needed to establish credit unions and 
community banks, as well as flexible capital make 
this unlikely; CNEDCU will week to work in 
partnership with these organisations to provide the 
service on their behalf 

Lack of support from  
Local Authorities etc. 

Low Low Good communication, involvement and engaging 
their client base. Becoming integral to their Welfare 
Reform response and tackling financial exclusion 

Competition from 
organisations such as 
Wonga, Provident etc. 

Low Low National negative publicity of payday lenders is 
often now accompanied by signposting to credit 
unions, helping to raise awareness and enquiries 

 

Page 24



 

       

For Publication 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT CONSORTIUM 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT CONSORTIUM PROGRESS REPORT 2015/16 AND 
DRAFT BUSINESS PLAN 2016/17 

 

 
MEETING: 
 

 
JOINT BOARD 

 
DATE: 
 

 
 14th March 2016 

 
REPORT BY: 
 

 
INTERNAL  AUDIT CONSORTIUM MANAGER 

For Publication 
 

 

Back Ground 
Papers: 

Consortium Budget Working Papers 

 
1.0 PURPOSE OF THE REPORT 
 
1.1 To update the Joint Board on the progress made by the Internal Audit 

Consortium during the financial year 2015/ 2016. 
 
1.2 To provide an update on the business plan (budget) for the Consortium 

for 2015/16 and to seek approval for the revised 2015/16 business 
plan and draft business plan for 2016/17. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That the progress made by the Internal Audit Consortium be noted. 
 
2.2 That the decision regarding the appointment of the Internal Audit 

Consortium Manager be approved. 
 
2.3 That the revised Business Plan (budget) for 2015/16 and the draft 

Internal Audit Consortium Business Plan (and associated charges) for 
2016/17, based on Appendix 1, be approved.  

 
2.4 That the accumulated surplus of the Internal Audit Consortium at the 

31st March 2016 (less £20,000 to be held as a working balance) be 
distributed to the partner authorities.   

Page 25

Agenda Item 5



 

2.5 That an annual report on the outcome of the operation of the Internal 
Audit Consortium for 2015/16 be submitted to the Joint Board following 
the year-end. 

 
3.0 SUMMARY OF PROGRESS  
 
3.1    Future Developments 
 

 The Public Sector Internal Audit Standards requires that internal audit 
be subject to an external review at least once every 5 years. The first 
review must be completed by March 2018. During 2016/17 it is 
intended to procure an external reviewer using the NHS procurement 
unit that now provides a service to all 3 council’s within the Consortium 
and also to DDDC. A provision of £20,000 (to be shared between the 
partner authorities and DDDC) has been made within the 2016/17 
budget for this to take place. 

 
3.2 Staffing Issues 
 

 On the 9th November 2015 Joint Board approved a revised staffing 
structure for the Internal Audit Consortium. The revised structure was 
implemented from the 1st December 2015 and consists of 9.1 FTE 
staff. 

 

 Following a recruitment exercise the Interim Head of the Internal Audit 
Consortium has been appointed as the Internal Audit Consortium 
Manager from the 1st January 2016. 
 

 One Auditor is still currently on secondment to Accountancy and that 
post is being covered by a temporary appointment. 
 

 The additional 0.5 Auditor post created by the restructure has not yet 
been filled. 
 

3.3 Working Procedures 
 

 An internal review of compliance with the Public Sector Internal Audit 
Standards was completed in January 2016 and the review did not 
identify any significant areas of non- compliance.  
 

 As part of the internal audit restructure The Deputy Head of Internal 
Audit post has been abolished, senior auditors have taken on more 
management responsibilities and the auditor job description has been 
reviewed and re - evaluated to a 6/7 recognising it as a career graded 
post. 

Page 26



 

 
 Internal Audit (BDC and NEDDC) have been issued with lap tops. It is 

intended that CBC auditors will move to laptops once the access to all 
systems on laptops is feasible.  

 
 The audit manual has been reviewed and updated  

 

3.4 Internal Audit Plans 
 

 Internal audit plans for 2015/16 were agreed with each Client Officer in 
March 2015.  These were reported to and agreed by each Council’s 
Audit Committee.   
 

 Progress reports showing a summary of internal audit reports issued 
have been submitted to each Council’s Audit Committee. 
 

 A formal six monthly meeting has been held with each client officer to 
review progress and consider budget issues, as required under the 
Consortium Legal Agreement.  
 

 An annual report was submitted to each Audit Committee at the end of 
2014/15 summarising the audit work undertaken and giving an opinion 
on the control environment. 

 
4.0 BUSINESS PLAN 2015/16 AND DRAFT 2016/17 
 
4.1 Business Plan 2015/16 

 

 The original business plan for 2015/16 was reported to and approved 
by the Joint Board on the 15th March 2015.  The original business plan 
projected a break even position for the year (Appendix 1).  
 

 The revised business plan based on the latest budget estimates now 
predicts a surplus of £47,970 will be achieved in 2015/16.  The main 
reason for this is salary savings on the Deputy Head of Internal Audit 
post. 

 

 The estimated accumulated surplus at the end of 2015/16 is therefore 
£97,970.  It is proposed that £20,000 of this be retained by the Internal 
Audit Consortium as a working balance with the remainder of the 
accumulated surplus being distributed to the partner authorities in 
proportion to the allocation of charges.  

 
 
 

Page 27



 

 

 This would result in the following distribution based on the current 
estimates:   

 
 £ 
Estimated Surplus at 31st March 2016 97,970 
Less Working Balance carried forward 20,000 

 77,970 

Proposed Distribution:  
Chesterfield (36.6%)   28,537   
North East Derbyshire DC (31.8%) 24,794 
Bolsover DC (31.6%) 24,639 

 77,970 

 
4.2 Business Plan 2016/17 (Draft) 
 

 A draft business plan for the Consortium has been prepared for 
2016/17 and the following two years (see Appendix 1).  This business 
plan is based on the FTE of 9.1 posts.  The draft initial budget also 
reflects provision for pay awards.   

 

 A provision of £20,000 (to be split between the 3 partner Council’s and 
DDDC) has been made to fund the external review of internal audit 
that must be carried out before the end of March 2018. 
 

 For information, a summary of the charges made by the Consortium 
covering the period 2011/12 – 2016/17 (estimate) is shown in 
Appendix 2.   

 

 The draft business plan for 2016/17 includes an income of £9,800 from 
Derbyshire Dales District Council for the continued provision of a 
management service. 

 
5.0 RISK REGISTER 
 
5.1 Review of Consortium Risk Register 

 
The business case for the internal audit consortium contained a risk 
register.  This has been updated and is shown as Appendix 3. 

 
6.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
6.1 That the progress made by the Internal Audit Consortium be noted. 
 

Page 28



 

6.2  That the decision regarding the appointment of the Internal Audit 
Consortium Manager be approved. 

 
6.3 That the revised Business Plan (budget) for 2015/16 and the draft 

Internal Audit Consortium Business Plan (and associated charges) for 
2016/17, based on Appendix 1, be approved.  

 
6.4 That the accumulated surplus of the Internal Audit Consortium at the 

31st March 2016 (less £20,000 to be held as a working balance) be 
distributed to the partner authorities.   

 
6.5 That an annual report on the outcome of the operation of the Internal 

Audit Consortium for 2015/16 be submitted to the Joint Board following 
the year-end. 

 
7.0 REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
7.1 To enable members to be aware of the progress made by the Internal 

Audit Consortium.  
 
7.2 To enable the Consortium resource availability to be kept under 

review. 
 
7.3 To enable the partner authorities to budget for the Consortium charges 

for 2016/17. 
 
 

Jenny Williams 
Internal Audit Consortium Manager 

 
For further information on this report, please contact Jenny Williams 01246 

345468 
 

Page 29



 

Joint Board Decision 

Officer Recommendation supported/not supported/modified as below: 

 

Signed   Leader (or reserve) Bolsover District Council 

 

Signed                          Leader (or reserve) Chesterfield Borough Council 

 

Signed                          Leader (or reserve) North East Derbyshire District 
Council 

Date 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 30



 

Appendix 1 
 

INTERNAL AUDIT CONSORTIUM BUSINESS PLAN   
2015/16 TO 2018/19 

      

  2015/16 2016/17 2017/18 2018/19 

  Original Revised Estimate Estimate Estimate 

  £ £ £ £ £ 

Expenditure:         

Employees 370,090 314,860 355,760 364,950 374,140 

Transport 3,150 3,150 3,150 3,150 3,150 

Supplies 1,930 7,930 26,540 6,550 6,560 

Support Services 50,730 52,090 52,420 52,500 53,280 

Total Expenditure 425,900 378,030 437,870 427,150 437,130 

       

Income:      

Charges to CBC 152,210 152,210 154,180 152,540 156,150 

Charges to NEDDC 132,230 132,230 134,600 132,520 135,660 

Charges to BDC 131,410 131,410 133,790 131,690 134,820 

Charges to Derbyshire Dales DC 9,700 9,700 14,800 9,900 10,000 

Charges – other 350 450 500 500 500 

Total Income 425,900 426,000 437,870 427,150 437,130 

       

Net surplus/(deficit) in year 0 47,970 0 0 0 

Net surplus/(deficit) b/fwd 50,000 50,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 

Net surplus/(deficit) c/fwd 0 97,970 20,000 20,000 20,000 

Less distribution of surplus  77,970 0 0 0 

Surplus balance carried forward   50,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 20,000 

Page 31



 

Appendix 2 
 

Internal Audit Consortium Charges 2011/12 – 2016/17 
 

Charges to: 2011/12 2012/13 2013/14 
 

2014/15 
 

2015/16 
(Rev)  

2016/17 
(Est) 

 £ £ £ £ £ £ 
Chesterfield BC 158,824 158,286 158,286 146,910 152,210 154,180 
       
North East 
Derbyshire DC 

137,680 137,213 137,213 127,630 132,230 134,600 

       
Bolsover DC 
 
Derbyshire 
Dales DC 
 
Charges – 
Other 

136,686 136,221 136,221 126,830 
 

9,600 
 
 

350 

131,410 
 

9,700 
 
 

450 

133,790 
 

14,800 
 
 

500 

       

 433,190 431,720 431,720 411,320 426,000 437,870 

       
Refund of 
Accumulated 
Surplus: 

  
 

   
 
 
 

 

Chesterfield BC 8,148 0 0 44,160 28,537 0 
       
North East 
Derbyshire DC 

7,079 0 0 38,369 24,794 0 

       
Bolsover DC 7,035 0 0 38,127 24,639 0 

       

 22,262 0 0 120,656 77,970 0 

 410,928 431,720 431,720 290,664 348,030 437,870 

 

Page 32



 

Appendix 3  
 

Internal Audit Consortium Risk Register 
 

Risk Likelihood Impact Residual 
Risk 

Score 

Management of 
Risk 

Failure to 
Substantially 
complete the 
agreed audit plans 

Unlikely 
(2) 

High (4) 8 
Amber 

Monitoring and 
reporting of progress 
to client officers and 
Audit Committees. 
 

Failure to 
undertake work to 
a satisfactory 
standard 

Unlikely 
(2) 

Medium 
(3) 

6 
Amber 

All work subject to 
quality reviews by 
senior staff.  Review 
of compliance with 
Public Sector Internal 
Audit Standards. 
 

Insufficient 
financial resources 
to fund Consortium 

Unlikely 
(2) 

High (4) 8 
Amber 

Consortium 
agreement details 
procedure to be 
adopted. 
 

Loss of data 
through IT failure 

Unlikely 
(2) 

Medium 
(3) 

6 
Amber 

Data stored on each 
Councils network and 
subject to their back 
up and security 
procedures.   
 

Failure to have the 
required external 
review of internal 
audit by the March 
2018 deadline 

 Unlikely 
(2) 

Medium 
(3) 

6 
Amber 

Consultation with the 
NHS procurement 
unit already in 
progress 

 
Risk Score (On a scale of 1 to 5) Likelihood x Impact 
 
0 – 4   = Green 
5 – 14 = Amber 
15+  = Red 

Page 33



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 35

Agenda Item 7
By virtue of paragraph(s) 4 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	Minutes , 09/11/2015 Joint Board

	4 Chesterfield and North East Derbyshire Credit Union - Business Plan 2015 - 2018
	5 Internal Audit Consortium Progress Report 2015/16 and Draft Business Plan 2016/17
	7 Building Control Transformation Project - Progress Update

